
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, December 15, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 12/01/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 

be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration 
form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder. You are not required 
to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  
Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 

None Scheduled 
 

7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director and the Chief of Police 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adoption of Resolution No.1866 canvassing results of the general election held on 
November 4, 2014. 

B. Adoption of Resolution No.1867 selecting Cogan, Owens & Greene to conduct the 
visioning process for Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Review of the Check Register 
D. Adoption of Resolution No.1868 declaring surplus equipment and abandoned items. 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 49



11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled 
 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. January 2015 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Christmas Holiday, Thursday, December 25-City offices and Library closed 
 December 26th, City Hall closed 
 New Years’ Day Holiday, Thursday, January 1, 2014-City offices and Library 

closed 
 North Plains Annual Crab Feed on Saturday, January 17, 2015 at Jessie Mays 
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday, Monday, January 19-City offices and Library 

closed 
 An Evening with an Author: Robin Cody, January 24, 2014 at the Library 

  
15. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, 
if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall 
at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 
Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

 
Monday, January 5, 2015 Tuesday, January 20, 2015 Monday, February 2, 2015 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 49



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, December 1, 2014 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 

Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Michael Broome, and Glen Warren 
Excused: Robert Kindel, Jr., and Michael Demagalski 

 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry; Chief of Police Bill Snyder; Library Director 
Debbie Brodie; City Recorder Margaret Reh 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 11/03/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 

A. Proclamation declaring December 10, 2014 as Human Rights Day and 
December 7-13, 2014 Human Rights Week 

 
Salma Ahmed and Lee Blevins of the Human Rights Council of Washington County 
thanked the Council for their support in promoting and publicly acknowledging the 
importance of human rights in our communities.  
 
Motion by Lenahan and seconded by Warren to declare December 10, 2014 as Human 
Rights Day and the week of December 7-13, 2014 as Human Rights Week. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Public Works Director.  Blake Boyles was absent but had submitted a written report 
which was included in the council packet. 
 
Chief of Police. Chief Snyder reported Hillsboro Chief Dobrowolski is working with 
contacts at Taser to provide a presentation on body worn cameras. It may be possible 
that a grant could be written that could provide 100 cameras for officers in Washington 
County. This may be a long process. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 49



Library Director.  Debra Brodie was pleased to report the library has a Christmas tree up 
in the lobby. The tree was donated by Loch Lolly and decorated by the Friends of the 
Library. 
 
The library is getting set up for a holiday fundraiser. They will have two tables full of craft 
items that have been donated by community crafters. Brodie encouraged the Council to 
visit the library and check out the wares. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Interview Parks Board Applicant Joanna Orgill and adoption of Resolution No. 
1859 appointing Orgill to the North Plains Parks Board 

 
The Council interview Joanna Orgill for one of the open positions on the North Plains 
Parks Board. 
 
Motion by Warren and seconded by Newton to adopt Resolution No.1859 appointing 
Joanna Orgill to the North Plains Parks Board. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Adoption of Resolution No.1860 Re-appointment of Heather LaBonte to 
Planning Commission position for another four year term. 

 
LaBonte appeared before the Council for re-appointment. Administrative rules allow the 
Council to reappoint members who request it without an open application process. The 
Council thanked LaBonte for her service and elected to re-appoint her to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to adopt Resolution No.1860 re-appointing 
Heather LaBonte to the North Plains Planning Commission. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

C. Adoption of Resolution No.1861 approving agreement with NPEA for Elephant 
Garlic Festival Event Planning Services. 

 
DeBry pointed out the NPEA signed the agreement but had returned it with some revised 
language. DeBry wanted the Council to be aware of the changes and how it may affect 
the City being able to adhere to the agreement. Discussion ensued. Council agreed the 
terms of the agreement are acceptable as written. 
 
Motion by Lenahan and seconded by Newton to adopt Resolution No.1861 approving an 
agreement with the North Plains Events Association to operate the Elephant Garlic 
Festival 2015-2019. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

D. Review of the 2014 Pumpkin Run costs and expenses and adoption of 
Resolution No.1862 allocating funds to the North Plains PTO. 

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 49



DeBry presented the staff report and described how the event played out. There were 
less participants in the run this year than last year. The total amount being donated to the 
PTO is $186.00. 
 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to adopt Resolution No.1862 allocating a 
donation to the North Plains Parent Teacher Organization of funds raised at the 2014 
Pumpkin Run. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

E. Discussion on review and providing comment on Washington County Land Use 
applications. 

 
A few times each month the City will receive notices from Washington County regarding 
land use applications. These can be for ordinances, specific projects or zoning actions. 
With rare exceptions, all of the notices are applicable to properties outside of the City of 
North Plains. Typically staff offers no comments unless the County has specifically 
requested that the City provide comments. DeBry will mention pertinent applications to 
Council as they come up.  
 
Recently Councilor Lenahan was concerned that Council was only advised verbally in a 
meeting of the project for a Hindu learning center, but not provided with the County notice 
or asked to make comments.  This led Lenahan to inquire of the process the City makes 
in responding to these “Request for Comment” forms for applications received from the 
County. Discussion ensued regarding various venues in which County disseminates 
information on land use. 
 
Council directed staff to forward all application notices via e-mail in her weekly reports. 
 

F. Review and adoption of Resolution No.1863 approving a donation match to the 
funds raised at the dance on November 8, 2014 for the Food Pantry Canopy. 

 
A fundraiser dance was held in November to raise funds to build a protective canopy over 
the driveway in front of the food pantry. The City Council had agreed to make a matching 
donation for the project. Only $144.00 was raised at the dance. With the matching 
donation from City Council there is $288.00 for the project. This would not be enough to 
cover expenses which is estimated to be $750.00. Discussion ensued. 
 
A suggestion was made to contact Wayne Holm at Oregon Canadian Forest Products to 
see if he would be interested in donating wood for the project. Russ Sheldon was in the 
audience and received a text from Mr. Holm asking who the contact person would be 
regarding donating the wood for the project. Holms would like to see this move forward. 
Mr. Holm should contact Glen Warren. 
 
Motion by Warren. Seconded by Newton to adopt Resolution No.1863 allocating a 
donation for the North Plains Food Pantry canopy. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

G. Discussion and decision authorizing designated signers for plat maps. 
DeBry presented the staff report. Staff is seeking direction from Council regarding who shall 
sign plats on behalf of Council, the Planning Commission and administrative decisions. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 49



 
City staff has signed plats subsequent to Planning Commission and administrative 
approvals. All plats are reviewed by either staff or the Commission and the actual signature 
is a formality subsequent to an approval. A signer can be a designee of either the Planning 
Commission or the City Council. The plat signing designee is a matter of preference for the 
City and not a requirement of law. If this task of acquiring a final signature is sent back to 
the Planning Commission, it is adding a step to what is an administrative act. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
North Plains Municipal Code is not clear on who makes the designation. The City Attorney 
will look into this further. Another section of code is in conflict with this portion of the code. 
Looks like there are two approval processes. Council would like legal to bring this back for 
further review.  
 

H. Approve Resolution No.1864 encouraging the curtailment of open burning and 
wood burning in appliances lacking air pollution control equipment 

DeBry presented the staff report and introduced Peter Brandom and Sarah Armitage of 
the City of Hillsboro. Background information was included in the packet distributed to the 
Council and posted on the website. 
 
There is growing concern in Washington County that air pollution is increasing. Two 
monitoring stations suggest that air quality is diminishing as a result of open burning of 
woody materials. If Washington County records high levels of particulate matter (PM2.5) it 
will be ordered to conform with strict Environmental Protection Agency rules to reduce 
emissions. This could affect economic development in North Plains and other Washington 
County communities. Washington County Public Health has initiated a program to 
educate citizens in Washington County about PM2.5 and its health impacts. Open 
burning, which includes agricultural burning, backyard burning, and land clearing, 
contributes significantly to local air pollution and threatens the health and well-being of 
North Plains’ residents and other persons. Burning wood in fireplaces and fire burning 
appliances that lack air pollution control equipment also contributes significantly to local 
air pollution. 
 
Leslie Lanzar, Recology, approached Council and reminded everyone that Nature’s 
Needs will accept all yard debris from North Plains’ residents for no charge. All a North 
Plains resident needs to do is show their identification for this free service. This service 
will be beneficial in the curtailment of open burning. 
 
This resolution is to encourage cooperation among all citizens to help improve our air 
quality. 
 
It was suggested to revise the third paragraph of Resolution No. 1864 by omitting the line 
that states “and threatens the health and well-being of North Plains’ residents and other 
persons”.  
 
Motion by Lenahan. Seconded by Warren to adopt Resolution No.1864 encouraging the 
curtailment of open burning and wood burning in appliances lacking air pollution control 
equipment, as amended. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 49



I. Approval of Resolution No.1865 Accepting Dedication of Public Rights of Way 
and Easements in the McKay Fields Subdivision 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. Staff is recommending the Council accept the dedication 
of public right of way and easements in the McKay Fields subdivision. 
 
Motion by Warren and seconded by Broome to adopt Resolution No.1865 accepting 
dedication of public rights of way and easements in the McKay Fields subdivision. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

None Scheduled 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
None Scheduled 
 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 

 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
DeBry was on vacation this past week. 
 
DeBry asked which Councilors were going to participate in the Jingle through North Plains’ 
parade. The Mayor expressed concern about the lights turning off when the gas pedal is 
used.  DeBry stated she would advise Public Works Director Boyles about the concern. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Mayor Hatcher announced there will be a Council Christmas party at the close of the 
December 15 Council meeting. Council will go through the regular agenda. This will be a 
potluck. City Staff is invited to participate along with the new Councilors and the outgoing 
Councilors. 
 
Warren stated the skate park in Rainier is still functioning and still has the same 
insurance. This skate park is made out of the same material that the North Plains 
temporary skate park was made out of. Rainier is having great success with their skate 
park. 
 
Warren talked to staff regarding the $25,000 for the skate park. It is still listed along with 
the walking trail. Warren wants to see the $25,000 to be a separate line item for the skate 
park only. He does not want to have the walking trail included on the same line item. It 
was noted that the line item was approved by the Budget committee to include both the 
skate park and the walking trail. 
 
Warren stated that heroin is rampant in this town and it makes him angry. Snyder 
encouraged Warren to tell those who know the users to consult with the police. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 49



 
Lenahan inquired of the status of the hiring of a planning consultant. DeBry stated they 
interviewed three planning firms. Cogan, Owens, Cogan came out on top. Martha met 
with Kirsten Green to help scope the plan for the Comprehensive Plan update. 
 
Broome inquired about the 76 Station sign that is half burned out. Staff will look into 
contacting them to repair it. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Jingle Through North Plains on Thursday, December 4, @ 6:30 at Jessie Mays 
 Christmas Holiday, Thursday, December 25-City offices and Library closed 
 New Years’ Day Holiday, Thursday, January 1, 2014-City offices and Library 

closed 
 North Plains Annual Crab Feed on Saturday, January 17, 2015 at Jessie Mays 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: Council adjourned the meeting at 9:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 49



 

Agenda Item No: 9A 
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   December 15, 2014 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Approval of Resolution No. 1866 November 4, 2014, General 

Election Canvassing Results 

 
Request:   Council to approve the canvassing results of the November 4, 2014 
General Election. 
 
Background:  Council elections occurred for three councilor positions during the 
General Election.  Following each election, Washington County provides election 
results to be canvassed to the City, which is a requirement of State law (ORS 
222.270).  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Approval of results has no fiscal impact. 
 
Recommendation: That Council approve Resolution No. 1866 canvassing 
results of the general election held in the City of North Plains, Oregon, on 
November 4, 2014. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 49



RESOLUTION NO. 1866 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, CANVASSING RESULTS OF THE GENERAL ELECTION HELD IN THE 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, ON NOVEMBER 4, 2014 
   
 WHEREAS, a General Election was held on November 4, 2014, wherein the legal 
voters of the City of North Plains, Oregon, voted during the election of three persons to 
the councilor positions, 
       
 WHEREAS, the Washington County Elections Manager has filed with the City 
Recorder/Elections Official of the City of North Plains an Abstract of the votes of the 
election, and it is necessary that the City Council now canvass the results of the election 
as follows: 
 
COUNCILOR ELECTION 
That the legal voters of the City of North Plains, Oregon, at said General Election 
of November 4, 2014, cast the following votes for three (3) members of the City 
Council: 
 
 CANDIDATES NUMBER OF VOTES CAST 
 Sherrie L. Simmons: 460 
 Sandi King 298 
 Scott Whitehead: 294 
 Glen A. Warren: 219 
 Michael (Mike) L. Broome 211 
 Greg M. Kuhn 176 
 Write In: 60 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That the Abstract of Votes of the Washington 
County Election Manager is approved and the 
results of the General Election are set forth 
above. 

 
Section 2. Sherrie L. Simmons, Sandi King and Scott 

Whitehead are deemed to be duly elected to the 
City of North Plains City Council for terms 
beginning January 1, 2014, through December 
31, 2017. 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption by the City Council. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 49



 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2014. 
 
 
 CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________ 
 Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 49

mdebry
Polygon



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 49



 

Agenda Item No: 9B 
 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 
31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 
Date:   December 7, 2014 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Approval of Resolution No.1867 Selection of Cogan, Owens & 

Greene to conduct the visioning process for Comprehensive Plan 
and allocating funds to cover costs. 

Request:  Council consider retaining Cogan, Owens, & Greene (Cogan, Owens) 
for the visioning process related to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Background:  At the October 15, 2014 joint meeting of the Planning 
Commission and City Council, a recommendation was made to obtain the 
assistance of a consulting firm to define the vision of the community.  A clear 
vision of the future is essential to create a Comprehensive Plan for the next 20 
years. 
 
A request for qualifications (RFQ) was sent to planning firms in the Portland area.  
The RFQ requested proposals for assistance with the preparation of the 
Comprehensive Plan and routine processing of planning applications.  Three 
firms responded and were interviewed by a panel that included Mayor Hatcher, 
Council President Lenahan, City Manager Martha Debry and Planning 
Commission Chairman Stewart King.  Cogan, Owens was the highest ranked 
firm based on experience and approach to the project. 
 
Under the RFQ proposal, Cogan, Owens role would focus on the Comprehensive 
Plan and a smaller firm called 3J would assist with routine planning.  Both firms 
are well qualified to perform the work, and have adequate staffing to provide 
services to North Plains.  
 
Staff met with Kristin Greene, the managing principal of Cogan, Owens to 
discuss the development of cost proposal for visioning associated with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  (A copy of the proposal is included in Council’s packet.)  
Cogan, Owens plan is to work with a Vision Steering Committee (which will need 
to be appointed), in addition to conduct a series of interviews with community 
members, meetings with Council and the Planning Commission, and surveys to 
create and review two visioning workshops where the public would shape the 
vision of the City. Cogan, Owens would then prepare a final report with action 
items.  The process will require almost 9 months from beginning to finish. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 49



 
Fiscal Impact:  The estimated cost of the visioning process is $46,655 most of 
which would need to be allocated from the General Fund contingency this year, 
and the balance budgeted in the next year. Staff is estimating the FY14 expense 
at $39,000. 
 
For routine planning 3J is estimated to cost $6,000 between now and the end of 
the year.  While $4,000 is available for planning consultants in this fiscal year, 
and additional $2,000 would need to be allocated from the contingency.  The 
McKay Creek Crossing subdivision has been sent to their office for review and 
will consume almost $3,600 by itself. 
 
It should be noted, these costs will effectively increase the City’s expenses to 
exceed annual revenues. The exact impact on the General Fund balance will not 
be determined until billings are received and all revenues are known. If approved, 
these changes will be reflected in a supplemental budget. 
 
Recommendation: Council adopt Resolution No.1867 allocating $41,000 from 
the contingency for planning consultants, and authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with Cogan, Owens and Greene for community 
visioning. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to adopt Resolution No. 1867. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 49



North Plains Vision Schedule – Discussion Draft

TASKS JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

1. Project Management including 
Bi-Monthly Calls

2. Vision Steering Committee (6)

3. Community Profile Draft and Final

4. Public Outreach and Engagement 
(Look, Interviews, Surveys)

5. Vision Workshops (2)

6. Draft and Final Vision

7. Draft and Revised Action Items/
List of Recommended Comp Plan 
and Code Amendments

2015

December 9, 2014

VSC Meetings

Vision Workshop

Deliverables

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 49



KG Assc Graphics Admin Comments

 Tasks $175 $85 $90 $85 

1. Project Management 36 9 $7,065 $7,065 Assumes 9 months; bimonthly calls and invoicing

2. Vision Steering Committee 36 24 $100 $8,440 $8,440 Assumes 6 meetings; city provides printing and refreshments

3. Community Profile 4 26 4 $3,270 $3,270 Draft and final

4. Public Outreach and Engagement 52 38 18 $500 $14,450 $14,450
6 interviews; 6 community conversations including four meetings w/ 

PC and Council; two e-surveys; content for communications

5. Vision Workshops 30 30 $50 $7,850 $7,850 Two (2) community workshops

6. Draft and Final Vision 12 6 $2,610 $2,610

7. Draft and Final Action Items 12 6 4 $2,970 $2,970

Total Hours 182 130 26 9 347 

 Total Dollars $31,850 $11,050 $2,340 $765 $650 $46,655 $46,655

North Plains Vision for 

Comp Plan Update TotalCOC 

Subtotal

Cogan Owens Greene

Exp

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 49



RESOLUTION NO. 1867 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
SELECTING COGAN, OWENS & GREENE TO CONDUCT THE VISIONING PROCESS 

FOR THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
WHEREAS, the City conducted a request for qualifications process to obtain long-term and 
routine planning services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the three respondents were interviewed by Mayor Hatcher, Council President 
Lenahan, Planning Commission Chairman King and City Manager DeBry; and  
 
WHEREAS, Cogan, Owens & Greene appeared to best meet the needs of the community; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, a scope of work to prepare a community vision was presented by Cogan, 
Owens and Greene; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
 Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement with 

Cogan, Owens and Greene for the scope of work described in 
Attachment A; and 

 
 Section 2.  A total $41,000 shall be reallocated from the General Fund 

contingency to account 110-465-330000.  
 
  

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2014. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 

 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 49



City of North Plains Vision to Comprehensive Planning 
Draft Scope of Work 
December 9, 2014 
 
Task 1. Project Management 
The COC Team and City staff will hold a project kickoff meeting to agree on a refined scope of 
work, schedule, budget, and roles and responsibilities for COC and City staff.  We will collect 
relevant background materials, including the existing adopted Comprehensive Plan, and agree 
on a preliminary list of key stakeholder groups and potential candidates for a Vision Steering 
Committee.  COC and City staff also will refine public engagement and communications tools and 
strategies. 
 
Throughout the vision process, COC and the City project manager will hold bi-weekly project 
management phone calls to track progress on key tasks and deadlines, identify unanticipated 
issues and develop alternative approaches as needed.  We expect these not to exceed 30 minutes 
per call. To ensure accountability and conformance with the project budget, we will prepare 
monthly progress reports and invoices that describe the activities undertaken, estimate the 
percent completion of each task, and track expenditures and hours. 
 
Task 2. Vision Steering Committee 
A successful vision process will create a shared sense of ownership vision among North Plains 
citizens.  We will convene and facilitate up to six (6) meetings of a Vision Steering Committee that 
represents a broad cross-section of community interests, stakeholders and perspectives.  The 
Steering Committee will review and comment on work products, guide public outreach and 
engagement efforts, act as liaisons to specific constituencies or interest groups, help host public 
events and encourage community members to participate in the process, and act as champions 
of the ultimate vision and action items that emerge from this process. 
 
The COC Team will develop Steering Committee charter that establishes roles, shared ground 
rules and decision-making procedures.  City staff will prepare draft agendas on which COC will 
provide comments. The City will be responsible for notifying Steering Committee members, 
coordinating meeting logistics, printing materials and preparing meeting summaries. 
 
Task 3. Community Profile 
It is important that everyone who participates in this vision process has a shared understanding 
of North Plains as it exists today including future trends.  We will assess the City in terms of 
current demographic, social and cultural, economic, educational, recreational and other 
pertinent factors.  We will begin our research with background materials provided by the City, 
including the City’s Comprehensive Plan, information on related efforts from local organizations, 
results of recent planning efforts, Census data and other relevant sources.  We will prepare 
community profile and trends report in easy-to-read format.  Information will be presented using 
text, tables, graphs, illustrations, maps and photos.  A formatted executive summary be 
distributed widely through the project website and local newspaper. 
 

Agenda Item No: 9B 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 49

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text
Attachment A

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text



Task 4. Public Outreach and Engagement 
The COC Team will prepare and help implement a Public Outreach and Engagement Plan to guide 
efforts throughout the vision process.  We will encourage community-wide participation by 
providing a range of online and in person opportunities for participation. We will build upon 
existing City mechanisms for community engagement; establish community engagement 
objectives; identify City stakeholders and their issues and concerns; describe the array of tools 
and activities best suited to inform and engage stakeholders.  COC will provide written summaries 
of public outreach results. 
 
Potential community outreach and communications tools and activities include, but are not 
limited to: 
 
Community Conversations.  We recommend taking the vision process out to community groups 
through a few community conversations with key stakeholder groups at their regular meetings. 
We have scheduled up two. City staff or leaders may wish to hold more based on this pattern and 
materials. The conversations will provide community members with information about the 
project and engage them in discussion about what they value about North Plains today and what 
could make it a better place to live in the future.   
 
Web-based Questionnaires.  We will develop two (2) online questionnaires to supplement in-
person community engagement activities. The questionnaires will provide an alternative 
opportunity to comment for those who may not come to a meeting.  The first questionnaire will 
coincide with the community conversations.  The second questionnaire will run concurrent with 
Vision Summit #2 to confirm the vision and identify action items including comprehensive plan 
amendments. 
 
Planning Commission and Council Hearings.  The COC Team will help prepare for and assist at up 
to four (4) vision work sessions with Planning Commission and City Council members and seek 
their guidance on the vision and implementation actions. 
 
Communication Tools 
We will work with City staff to use a variety of methods to notify residents about public events 
and other opportunities to be involved in Vision process.  Within available resources, we will work 
with staff to finalize the scope of services: 

 Vision logo.  At the outset of the project, we will create a project identity that is unique and 
compelling.  This “look” will appear on all project materials and provide continuity and 
visibility for the vision process. 

 Project Website. City staff will design and administer an informative, accessible and 
interactive website.  COC will provide content for the site including project overview and 
timeline, important contacts, schedules for public events, opportunities for public 
engagement, updates on the project’s status, and the ability to view or download documents.  

 Social media. The City will update the Facebook page – ideally once per week associated with 
the Vision process.  

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 49



 Media contacts.  We will prepare media releases to local newspapers for the City to distribute 
and assist with media relations. 

 Meeting flyers. We will ask the Steering Committee to help identify locations and contacts to 
assist in publicizing public events and other opportunities for involvement. 

 Electronic mailing list. The City will maintain a database of e-mail addresses of people who 
express interest in the planning process.  We will prepare content for e-newsletter posts for 
the City to distribute to help notify people about events and activities.  Interested community 
members will have several opportunities to join the mailing list, such as on the project 
website and at public meetings and events. 

 
Task 5. Vision Workshops 
COC will work with City staff and the Steering Committee to host two Vision Workshops.  At Vision 
Workshop #1, we will present information gathered through research and community outreach 
activities and engage people in an exercise to identify important themes that will align with 
comprehensive plan chapters and frame the vision.  At Vision Workshop #2, participants will 
confirm the draft vision and identify action items to implement the vision.  COC will design, 
facilitate and prepare a summary of workshop results.  City staff will be responsible for notifying 
the public, coordinating workshop logistics and printing materials. 
 
Task 6. Draft and Final Vision 
Following Vision Workshop #1, we will work with City Staff to use themes identified through 
community outreach activities to draft a vision for the future of North Plains.  These themes 
provide context for understanding community concerns and priorities and may encompass issues 
such as community identity and character, desired housing and transportation options, economic 
development, community aesthetics, sustainability, health, agriculture, tourism and other issue 
areas.  Comments gathered through the process also will be used to identify preliminary vision 
implementation or action items.  We will revise the draft vision to incorporate comments from 
City staff, the Steering Committee and gathered at Vision Workshop #2, guidance from Planning 
Commission and Council and through the second community questionnaire. 
 
Task 7. Draft and Final Action Items 
Following Community Workshop #2, we will summarize comments and guidance to date to 
develop discussion draft implementation and action items including suggested Comprehensive 
Plan and possibly code amendments.  We will revise the draft action items to incorporate 
comments from City staff and the Steering Committee.   

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 49



 

Agenda Item No: 9C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  December 15, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: November 2014 Check Register 

Background:  At the second City Council meeting of each month staff provides a print 
out of the check register showing the checks that were issued the previous month.  
 
To assist Council with reviewing the check register, the account prefixes for departments 
are below: 
 
110-411 Culture and Recreation 
110-419 General Government 
110-421 Police 
110-433 Public Works 
110-452 Parks 
110-455 Library 
110-465 Planning 
111-000 Streets 
210-000 Water 
130-000 TDT Tax Fund 
131-000 Parks Capital 
132-000 Traffic Impact Fee 
009-000 Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund 
113-000 Urban Renewal Agency 
 
There are two types of checks showing on these reports. There are recurring checks 
that were automatically paid to the vendors and checks that are cut for an expense for 
that current month. Council can differentiate between the two by looking at the Check 
Number column. If the check is a five digit number, the check was generated for a one-
time payment. If the check number begins with a zero, it is an automatically generated 
recurring check on a monthly basis. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   The register reflects actual expenses of the City.  All payments to 
vendors, consultants and other agencies are shown on the registers, as well as 
reimbursements to employees. Payroll checks are the only expenses not reflected on 
the register.   
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 49

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No:9C

mreh
Typewritten Text
2014 November Check Register



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 49



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 49



 

Agenda Item No: 9D   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  December 11, 2014 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 1868 declaring surplus equipment and 
abandoned personal property and authorizing sale or disposal of such 
property 

Request:  Council consider Resolution No.1868 declaring certain found property as 
surplus, and declaring three iPads II’s as surplus. 
 
Background:  The City occasionally receives property found at parks, in the streets or 
other public facilities.  The property listed on Resolution No.1868 has been stored by the 
City for more than 30 days and no one has stepped forward to claim it. In accordance 
with Municipal Code 1.15, the Council can declare the property as surplus, allowing the 
Police Chief to dispose of the items either through sale or donation.  
 
The iPads II’s have been in use since May 2012 for the purpose of providing access to 
electronic packets.  Incoming Councilors have indicated that they have equipment for 
accessing packets.  As a gesture of good will, the iPads can be given to the outgoing 
councilors as gift from the community for their service or they can be sold.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  The City will offer the items for sale or donation. Any revenue will be 
remitted to the General Fund.  
 
Sample Motion:  I move to adopt Resolution No. 1868. 
 
Attachment – Resolution 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 49



 RESOLUTION NO. 1868 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 

DECLARING SURPLUS EQUIPMENT AND ABANDONED PERSONAL PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZING SALE OR DISPOSAL OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
 WHEREAS, the North Plains Police Department has acquired various abandoned 
personal property items; and, 
 
  WHEREAS,  Municipal Code Chapter 1.15—Abandoned Personal Property states 
that the Chief of Police may deem the appropriateness of the disposal of such property; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a detailed list of the property to be disposed of and an estimate of the 
value of each item shall be compiled; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is being asked to approve the disposition of such 
property on the list; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief of Police shall dispose of said property according to the 
guidelines set forth in the Municipal Code. 
 
  WHEREAS, a list of surplus items and values has been assembled to include: 

 Red duffle bag with miscellaneous clothing items, $1 
 Silver bicycle, unknown make/model, serial # RMC 24469542, $1 
 Purple bicycle, “La Jolla Street Cruiser”, serial # GS110329941, value of $10 
 Red scarf, $0 
 Purple Unicorn pillow pet, $0 
 Two toned grey zip up hoody, $0 
 Black children’s mittens, $0 
 Cheetah Print backpack with purple accents, $0 
 Metal water bottle, $0 
 Leather credit card holder, $0 
 8 gb iPod, $10 
 Grey men’s print t-shirt, , $0 
 Flowered Aeropostale zip up hoody, $0 
 Red and blue jacket, $0 
 Squirrel finger puppet, $0 
 White earphones, $0 
 Lanyard with ring and keys, $0 
 Adventure Time lanyard with keys, $0 
 Black framed narrow glasses, $0 
 Wire framed glasses, $0 
 Grey fedora with black bling, $0 
 (3) IPad II’s with cases, $85 each ($255) 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 49



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, declares as surplus miscellaneous abandoned personal 
property and authorizes its sale, donation or disposal. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of December, 2014. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 49



January 2015 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council  
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

01/05 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall 6:00 p.m. 01/02 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel  2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 01/08 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 01/12 

Planning Commission Simmons  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 01/14 

North Plains Senior Center 
Crab and Steak Feed  Seating at 3:00; 4:30 and 

6:00 at Jessie Mays 01/17 

Holiday: Martin Luther King, 
Jr. Day  Monday, City Offices Closed 01/19 

City Council  Tuesday 7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

01/20 

Library Board  King  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 01/21 

An Evening with an Author: 
Robin Cody 

Author of “Ricochet River” 
and “Voyage of a Summer 
Sun” 

7:00 p.m. at the Library 01/24 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 01/28 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 01/28 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry   
 
 
 

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, December 15, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 49


	4A 121514 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 120114 City Council Minutes
	7B Thank you to Police Department
	9A Memo Resolution No. 1866 2014 Election Results
	9A Resolution Number 1866 Canvassing results 11-4-14 Elections
	9A1 2014 Washington County Abstract of Votes1
	9B Memo Resolution No. 1867 Cogan Owens for Comprehensive Plan
	9B2 North Plains Vision schedule Discussion Draft 12 09 14
	9B3 Copy of Prelim Cost Estimate 12 9 14
	9B4 Comp Plan to Vision Draft SOW
	9B4 Resolution No. 1867 cogan owens
	9C Memo November Check Register Explanation
	9C November 2014 Check Register
	9D Memo Items being declared Surplus
	9D Resolution No 1868 Surplus Abandoned Personal Property
	13B Calendar January 2015



